A Member of the ECIDA Financing and Development Group =

L)

INDUSTRIAL LAND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land Development Corporation
Meeting of the Membership
May 31, 2023
At 12:30 p.m.

701 Ellicott Street, Center of Excellence in Bioinformatics and Life Sciences (CBLS)

The Event Space/Conference Room B2-205, located on the 2nd floor, Buffalo, New York 14203

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

Call to Order
Approval of Minutes

2.1 Approval of the April 26, 2023 Joint Annual Board of Directors & Membership
Meeting Minutes (Action Item) (Pages 2-4)

Reports / Action Items / Information Items:

3.1 Financial Report (Informational) (Pages 5-8)

3.2 Loan Status Report (Informational) (Page 9)

3.3 Approval of Parcel Sale Agreement (Action Item) (Pages 10-16)
Management Team Reports:

4.1

Adjournment- Next Meeting June 28, 2023



Draft
Subject to Board Approval

JOINT ANNUAL MEETING OF THE

MEMBERSHIP AND BOARD OF DIRECTORS

OF THE

BUFFALO AND ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL

DATE AND PLACE:

PRESENT:

EXCUSED:

OTHERS PRESENT:

GUESTS:

LAND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

ALDC)

April 26, 2023, at _the Center of Excellence in Bioinformatics and Life
Sciences (CBLS), 701 Ellicott Street, The Event Space/Conference
Room B2-205, located on the 2nd floor, Buffalo, New York 14203.

Denise Abbott, Daniel Castle, Hon. Howard Johnson, Richard Lipsitz,
Jr. and Hon. Mark C. Poloncarz

April Baskin and Hon. Byron W. Brown

John Cappellino, President & CEQ; Beth O’Keefe, Vice President of
Operations/Secretary; Mollie Profic, Chief Financial Officer; Atiga
Abidi, Assistant Treasurer; Gerald Manhard, Chief Lending Officer;
Grant Lesswing, Director of Business Development; Andrew Federick,
Business Development Officer; Soma Hawramee, Compliance
Portfolio Manager; Brian Krygier, Director of Information
Technology; Carrie Hocieniec, Operations Assistant/Assistant
Secretary; Laurie Hendrix, Administrative Coordinator; Robbie Ann
McPherson, Director of Marketing & Communications and Robert G.
Murray, Esq., General Counsel/Harris Beach PLLC

Alex Carducci on behalf of the City of Buffalo; Zachary Evans on
behalf of Erie County; Josh Veronica on behalf of Buffalo Niagara
Partnership; Dale Shoemaker and Garrett Looker on behalf of
Investigative Post.

There being a quorum present at 1:00 p.m., the Meeting of the Board of Directors of the
Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land Development Corporation was called to order its Chair,

Mr. Poloncarz.

MINUTES

Mr. Johnson moved and Mr. Lipsitz seconded to approve of the March 22, 2023 minutes.
Mr. Poloncarz called for the vote and the minutes were unanimously approved.

Page 1 of 3



REPORTS / ACTION ITEMS / INFORMATION ITEMS

Financial Report. Ms. Profic presented the March financial reports. The balance sheet
shows ILDC ended the month with total assets of $18.9M. Grants receivable of $10.2M
represent amounts awarded by several sources, the largest being Buffalo Billion II funds from
Empire State Development. Liabilities of $11.6M is mainly deferred grant revenue. Net assets
total $7.3M. The March income statement shows $2,100 of revenue, $5,300 of expenses and
$98,000 of net special project grants, totaling $95,000 of net income in March. The year-to-date
income statement shows revenues of $5,700 and expenses of $40,000. Special project net
revenue of $24,000 leads to a net loss of $10,000 so far in 2023. Mr. Poloncarz directed that the
report be received and filed.

Loan Status Report. Mr. Manhard provided this report to Committee members. Mr.
Poloncarz directed that the report be received and filed.

Annual Report of Directors. Ms. Profic reviewed the memorandum regarding the ILDC’s
Annual Report of Directors. She advised New York State Not-For-Profit law requires certain
information to be presented in a report annually to the ILDC. As the memorandum outlines, the
first four requirements were satisfied with the presentation of the audited financial statements.
The final requirement is reporting that ILDC continues to have one membership position, which
is held by Erie County. Mr. Poloncarz directed that the report be received and filed.

Nominating Committee Update. Mr. Poloncarz confirmed that the Nominating
Committee met last week and approved and recommends for approval the slate of officers and
committee appointments as presented to the member, today.

Ms. Abbott moved and Mr. Johnson seconded to approve the entire slate of officers and
committee appointments. Mr. Poloncarz called for the vote and the entire slate of officers and
committee appointments as proposed were unanimously approved.

Environmental Consultant Approval. Mr. Cappellino reviewed the proposal to engage
two engineering consulting firms for various engineering consulting services.

In December of 2022, the ILDC/ECIDA issued a Request for Proposals for qualified
engineering firms to assist in due diligence efforts in connection with various land development
and redevelopment projects. In response, the ILDC received five proposals, which were
reviewed and scored by a committee of stakeholders which is recommending the Agency enter
into contract with Liro and C&S Companies. The agreements would be for a three-year term to
be billed on an hourly rate basis for services provided.

Mr. Cappellino stated that the he is seeking approval from the board to enter into
contracts with Liro and C&S companies to provide general planning, environmental and
engineering services in support of the ILDC land development efforts for a three-year period.

Page 2 of 3



Mr. Castle moved and Ms. Abbott seconded to approve of engaging Liro and C&S
Companies. Mr. Poloncarz then called for the vote and the following resolution was unanimously
approved:

RESOLUTION OF THE BUFFALO AND ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL
LAND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION (“ILDC”) AUTHORIZING THE
ILDC TO ENTER INTO A CONTRACT WITH THE LIRO GROUP AND C&S
COMPANIES FOR THE PROVISION OF GENERAL PLANNING,
ENVIRONMENTAL AND ENGINEERING SERVICES IN SUPPORT OF THE
ILDC’S CONTINUING LAND DEVELOPMENT EFFORTS IN ERIE
COUNTY

Property Disposition Discussion. Ms. Abbott moved and Mr. Johnson seconded to enter
into Executive Session for the purpose of discussing the proposed sale of real property because
publicity would substantially affect the value thereof. Mr. Poloncarz called for the vote and the
motion was then unanimously approved.

At 1:09 p.m., the Agency entered into Executive Session.

Upon motion made by Mr. Castle and seconded by Mr. Lipsitz, and unanimously
approved, the Agency terminated Executive Session at 1:19 p.m.

There being no further business to discuss, Mr. Poloncarz adjourned the meeting at
1:20 p.m.

Dated: April 26, 2023

Elizabeth A. O’Keefe, Secretary

Page 3 of 3



Industrial Land Development Corp.

Financial Statements
As of April 30, 2023




INDUSTRIAL LAND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION ("ILDC")
Balance Sheet

April 30, 2023
April 2023 March 2023 December 2022
ASSETS:
Restricted Cash * $ 1,716,448 $ 1,291,398 $ 1,255,405
Grants Receivable 10,039,138 10,212,072 10,212,072
Loans Receivable, net 541,804 533,019 559,404
Prepaid Expenses 46,089 31,500 31,500
Prepaid Acquisition Costs 693,868 693,255 692,934
Total Loan Assets 13,037,347 12,761,244 12,751,316
Capital Assets 6,174,862 6,174,610 6,174,218
Total Assets $ 19,212210 % 18,935,854 $ 18,925,534
LIABILITIES & NET ASSETS:
Accounts Payable $ 214 $ 642 $ 824,129
Due to/(from) ECIDA 2,308,711 1,216,865 179,722
Other Liabilities 9,450,583 10,378,690 10,572,025
Total Liabilities 11,759,508 11,596,198 11,575,876
Restricted Fund Balance 7,452,702 7,339,657 7,349,658
Total Liabilities & Net Assets $ 19,212,210 $ 18,935,854 $ 18,925,534
Loan Portfolio Summary: April 2023 March 2023 December 2022
# of Loans 35 36 36

* Cash is invested in interest bearing accounts at M&T Bank.
The maximum FDIC insured amount is $250,000 with the remainder collateralized
with government obligations by the financial institution.



INDUSTRIAL LAND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION ("ILDC")
Income Statement
Month of April 2023

REVENUES:
Interest Income - Loans
Grant Income - Microloan Program
Proceeds from (Cost of) Land Sales
Interest Income - Cash & Inv.
Total Revenues

EXPENSES:
Management Fee - ECIDA
Professional Services
General Office Expenses
Other Expenses
Total Expenses

SPECIAL PROJECT GRANTS:
Industrial Land Park - ESD
Industrial Land Park - EDA
Industrial Land Park - ECIDA
Angola Ag Park - ECIDA Grant
Other grant revenue

Industrial Land Park grant reimbursement

Industrial Land Park costs
Angola Ag Park costs
Other grant expenses

NET INCOME/(LOSS):

| Actual vs. Budget
Actual Budget Variance

$ 1,597 % 1,083 § 513
94,000 11,667 82,333
- 25,000 (25,000)

381 17 365

95,978 37,767 58,211
$ 2,000 § 15,833 § (13,833)
(5,579) 5,417 (10,996)
(0) 17 (17)
(49) 3,581 (3,630)
(3,628) 24,848 (28,476)
682,786 217,696 465,091
245197 - 245,197

8,563 5,833 2,730

13,321 8,333 4,987
- 23,609 (23,609)

- (12,500) 12,500
(931,988) (223,529) (708,459)
(4,440) (8,333) 3,893

- (24,775) 24,775

13,439 (13,667) 27,106

$ 113,045  § (748) $ 113,793

* Represents an allocation of salary and benefit costs from the ECIDA based on time charged
to ILDC. The amount booked is currently based on 2023 budget.



INDUSTRIAL LAND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION ("ILDC")
Income Statement
Year to Date: April 30, 2023

| Actual vs. Budget ] Actual vs. Prior Year
Actual Budget Variance Actual Prior Year Variance
REVENUES:
Interest Income - Loans $ 6499 $ 4333 § 2,165 $ 6,499 % 2252 % 4,247
Grant Income - Microloan Program 94,000 46,667 47,333 94,000 78,352 15,648
Proceeds from (Cost of) Land Sales - 100,000 (100,000) - - -
Other Income . - - - - 172,150 (172,150)
Interest Income - Cash & Inv. 1,201 67 1,135 1,201 30 1,171
Total Revenues 101,700 151,067 (49,366) 101,700 252,783 (151,084)
EXPENSES:
Management Fee - ECIDA 3 33600 § 63,333 (29,733) $ 33600 $ 140,000 § (106,400)
Provision for Loan Losses - 5,000 (5,000) - - -
Professional Services (3,292) 21,667 (24,959) (3,292) 8,518 (11,810)
General Office Expenses ©) 67 (67) 0) 686 (686)
Other Expenses 319 14,325 (14,008) 319 (63) 382
Total Expenses 30,627 104,392 (73,765) 30,627 149 141 (118.514)
SPECIAL PROJECT GRANTS:
Industrial Land Park - ESD 790,307 870,783 (80,477) 790,307 - 790,307
Industrial Land Park - EDA 331,142 - 331,142 331,142 - 331,142
Industrial Land Park - ECIDA 92,649 23,333 69,315 92,649 - 92,649
Angola Ag Park - ECIDA Grant 29,680 33,333 (3,653) 29,680 37,462 (7,782)
Other grant revenue - 94,435 (94,435) - 20,981 (20,981)
Industrial Land Park grant reimbursement - (50,000) 50,000 - - -
Industrial Land Park costs (1,204,448) (894,117) (310,331) (1,204,448) (75,791) (1,128,657)
Angola Ag Park costs (7,359) (33,333) 25,974 (7,359) (2,473) (4,886)
Other grant expenses - (99,101) 99,101 - (20,981) 20,981
31,971 (54,667) 86,638 31,971 (40,802) 72773
NET INCOME/(LOSS): $ 103044 % (7992) $ 111,036 $ 103044 3 62,841 $ 40,203

* Represents an allocation of salary and benefit costs from the ECIDA based on time charged
to ILDC. The amount booked is currently based on 2023 budget.



A Member of the ECIDA Financing and Development Group

INDUSTRIAL LAND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

Loan Status Report

May 2023
ILDC Loans Approved Since Last Meeting Municipality Amount
Grapes Lawn and Landscape Boston $35,000
ILDC Loans Closed Since Last Meeting Municipality Amount
Buffalo Firewood Springyville $35,000
Loans in Closing Process Municipality Amount
Grapes Lawn and Landscape Boston $35,000
Loans in the Pipeline Municipality Amount
2 Various $70,000
2023 - Loans Closed YTD Loan Total  Jobs to be Created Retained Jobs
1 $35,000 1 1.5

Loan Portfolio Performance

Past Due Loans:

Loan Outstanding Balance Amount Past Due Days Past Due Comments
NONE

Portfolio Delinquency Rate (Past Due Outstanding Loan Balance divided by Portfolio Balance):

$0/8$1,055,581 0% Delinquency Rate (37 Loans)

ILDC Funds Available to Lend: $125,000

95 Perry Street, Suite 403 * Buffalo, New York 14203 ¢ ph. 716.856.6525 * fx. 716.856.6754 « www .ecidany.com



3

INDUSTRIAL LAND DEVELGPMENT CORPORATION

A Mamber of the ECIDA Fenarcing and Developmant Group

MEMORANDUM

Date: May 31%, 2023

To: ILDC Board of Directors

From: ECIDA Staff

Re: Renaissance Commerce Park — Purchase Sale Agreement with Uniland

Development for Parcel 4a for Construction of Spec Building

Summaryv of General Business Terms:

The ILDC (Seller) and Uniland Development Company (Buyer) propose to enter into a Purchase
and Sale Agreement (PSA) for the purchase of land and construction of a new Spec building at
Renaissance Commerce Park. The new facility will help to meet demand for spec.
manufacturing and warehouse space in the region.

1. Agreement is for the sale and purchase of approx. 12.02 acres of land generally described
as a part of Business Park II, specifically Parcel I1-12 as designated for BCP purposes and
shown as development site #4A on the Master Plan map (attached).

2. The agreed upon purchase price for the Property is $50,000 per acre, total acquisition price
to be determined on the per acre price upon determination of final acreage per survey,
utility easement and road corridors.

3. Property to be sold to the Buyer with a Certificate of Completion (BCP status) and closing
shall be no later than 30 days after the inspection period of 90 days, as and if extended.

4. Buyer shall construct a minimum 150,000 sq.ft. light manufacturing/warehouse facility on
spec. Project construction must commence within 18 months of the closing date. In the
event the Buyer fails to commence construction before the required date the ILDC may
purchase the property back for 85% of the Purchase Price. In the alternative, the ILDC and
Buyer can agree to extend the construction commencement date for one, three (3) month
extension for an additional fee of $10,000.

5. Buyer shall complete the construction of the project within 18 months of the
commencement of construction, liquidated damages do apply if project does not meet the

95 Perry Street, Suite 403 « Buffalo, New York 14203 « ph. 716.856.6525 « fx. 716.856.6754 « www.ecidany.com

10



INDUSTRIAL LAND DEVRLOPMENT CORPORATION

A Member of the ECIDA Raancing and Development Group

completion date. Buyer may obtafn a six (6) month extension for completion of
construction for an additional fee of $10,000.

6. Buyer shall pay a deposit of 10% of the purchase price upon execution of the agreement.

7. The Buyer may seek an inducement from the ECIDA for incentives on the project
consisting of Sales, Mortgage and Property tax abatements as applicable.

Requested Action:

1. Seeking approval to execute an Agreement of Purchase and Sale with Uniland
Development Company for the sale and purchase of Parcel II-12 as shown as development
site #4A on the Master Plan, for a purchase price of $50,000/acre, and to execute all
agreements, documents and certifications as required for the sale of fee title of the property,
including required agreements pursuant to the NYS BCP program.

2. Seeking a determination that no further SEQRA compliance is required pursuant to 6
N.Y.C.R.R. Section 617.10(d)(1) because the contemplated action will be carried out in

conformance with the conditions and thresholds established in the ILDC SEQRA Findings
and Generic Environmental Impact Statement.

3. Secking confirmation that the proposed sale of the property is within the purposes, mission,
and statutory authority of the ILDC.

4. Seeking ratification and confirmation of the issuance of the Property Disposition Notice.

5. Seeking ratification and confirmation to take any and all actions as may be required to
comply with NYS BCP.

95 Perry Street, Suite 403 « Buffalo, New York 14203 « ph. 716.856.6525 = fx. 716.856.6754 « www.ecidany.com

11



'WIENNN L38HE
6102 HABOLDQ - 1wl

d
HALINULEVHAN] L4IINCD

FyTYE=T

UIBNAN LT

ue|d Jejsep
aumanyseyu) - HBdg
BuunBINURY PEOUBADY

WODSY

J00RR ININY MUGLOd

VSN0 / QH0TMIONN

Aw—40-LHGR 1TRLS N0 FAUNS TUAQUOD T

(001} avB—i0—iHOR L3S 208Nd G35000dd  THDNGAINT

ANGESYA WL INTROHS OHY WO LTRUS ([3S0d0Hd OMOMONI 10N «

Ohd W04 SRIY 09 HO RN 9

£ ) ez
L] /N i
v/N /N [3:d
zel e
¥ e vs v
N-via b ad e
L] 3 z6
v e 2 L]
n-va v 3
g 14 i1 ]
n-vm A &8
L] e o
"y 0% 29
nna Ta {213
n-vg ) e
L [314 s
D | v S | vt e
viva 107

g}
L

= BI/EZ/0V 11} BApZ-O\TYLLNENS\OVONIVD ™01 E\S TN D0BN N VRIS~ Grirangna\epaosd\i

@0 T

12




BUFFALO AND ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL LAND
DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

RESOLUTION

A meeting of the Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land Development Corporation was
convened on Wednesday, May 31, 2023, at 12:30 p.m.

The following resolution was duly offered and seconded, to wit:

RESOLUTION OF THE BUFFALO AND ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL LAND
DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION (THE “ILDC”) AUTHORIZING THE ILDC
TO (1) SELL RCP PARCEL II-12 (A/K/A RCP PARCEL #4A) (AS MORE
FULLY DEFINED HEREIN) TO UNILAND DEVELOPMENT COMPANY
(“UDC”); (i1) NEGOTIATE, EXECUTE, AND DELIVER AN AGREEMENT OF
PURCHASE AND SALE TO BE ENTERED INTO WITH UDC FOR THE
PURCHASE AND SALE OF RCP PARCEL II-12; AND (iii)) MAKE A
DETERMINATION PURSUANT TO THE NEW YORK STATE
ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY REVIEW ACT

WHEREAS, the Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land Development Corporation (the
“ILDC”) is authorized and empowered by Section 1411 of the Not-for-Profit Corporation Law of
the State of New York, as amended, to relieve and reduce unemployment, promote and provide
for additional and maximum employment, better and maintain job opportunities in Erie County
and to lessen the burdens of government and act in the public interest; and

WHEREAS, the ILDC owns over 100 acres of real property located at the Renaissance
Commerce Park (“RCP”) in Lackawanna, New York (the “RCP Site”); and

WHEREAS, the ILDC has established an infrastructure and master plan for the RCP Site
(the “RCP Master Plan™); and

WHEREAS, in compliance with Article 8 of the New York Environmental Conservation
Law and the regulations adopted thereto at 6 N.Y.C.R.R. Part 617 (collectively referred to as
“SEQRA”), the ILDC acted as SEQRA Lead Agency and on May 27, 2020, the ILDC accepted a
Draft Generic Environmental Impact Statement (the “DGEIS”) for the BSC Master Plan, on
September 23, 2020, the ILDC accepted and issued a Final Generic Environmental Impact
Statement (“FGEIS™) for the BSC Master Plan, and on October 28, 2020, the ILDC issued and
adopted its Findings Statement for the RCP Master Plan, which, amongst other items, evaluated
and authorized a conceptual master plan for the construction of warehousing and distribution
facilities (the “Findings Statement” and collectively, with the DGEIS, and the FGEIS, the “ILDC
SEQRA Findings”); and

WHEREAS, on February 23, 2023, Uniland Development Corporation (“UDC”) submitted

anon-binding Letter of Intent (the “LOI”) to the ILDC with respect to RCP Parcel 4A (alternatively
known as New York State Brownfield Cleanup Program (“BCP”) Site II-12 and being

13



approximately 12.02 +/- acres in size) (“Site 1I-12”) offering to purchase Site II-12 and construct
a 150,000 sq. ft. manufacturing/warehouse facility within and upon Site II-12, said facility to be
constructed on specification (the “UDC Project”); and

WHEREAS, ILDC staff reviewed the LOI submission, undertook extensive analysis of the
LOI submittal, and executed the LOI for the purpose of continuing to negotiate the terms of a
contemplated sale of Site II-12 to allow the undertaking of the UDC Project; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 2897(6)(c)(v) of the New York State Public Authorities
Law (“PAL”), the ILDC is permitted to dispose of real property or an interest in real property by
negotiation (without biding or advertising) so long as the purpose of the transfer is within the
purpose, mission or governing statute of the public authority; and

WHEREAS, the proposed transfer of Site II-12 is within the purpose, mission and statutory
authority of the ILDC as it is an action that is designed to relieve and reduce unemployment,
promote and provide for additional and maximum employment, better and maintain job
opportunities in Erie County and to lessen the burdens of government and act in the public interest;
and

WHEREAS, ILDC Staff, in consultation with ILDC board member leadership and ILDC
counsel, have negotiated the terms of a purchase and sale agreement (“PSA”) by and between the
ILDC and UDC consistent with the ILDC’s purpose, mission and governing statute; and

WHEREAS, the ILDC obtained an independent appraisal which determined the fair market
value of Site II-12 to be approximately $18,498.40 per acre and, as provided within the LOI, UDC
proposed a purchase price for Site 1I-12 in the amount of $50,000 per acre, producing a purchase
price of $601,000 (based on Site II-12 being approximately 12.02 +/- acres in size) which exceeds
its fair market value; and

WHEREAS, because Site I11-12 is the type of property described in PAL §2897(6)(d)(i)(B),
an explanatory statement was prepared and submitted to the State of New York Authorities Budget
Office (“ABO”) describing the circumstances of the disposal of Site II-12 by negotiation; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the foregoing, the ILDC desires to (i) authorize the negotiation,
execution and delivery of the PSA, (ii) authorize the transfer of Site II-12 to UDC in accordance
with the PSA, and (iii) the submission of any ancillary or required filings or notices as required
under the BCP with respect to the proposed transfer of Site II-12.

NOVW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BUFFALO AND ERIE
COUNTY INDUSTRIAL LAND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Based upon a review of the LOI, the proposed UDC Project, and the
representations made by UDC to the ILDC, the ILDC hereby determines that no further SEQR
compliance is required pursuant to 6 N.Y.C.R.R. Section 617.10(d)(1) because the contemplated
sale of Site 1I-12 and the UDC Project will be carried out in conformance with the conditions and
thresholds established in the ILDC SEQRA Findings.

14



Section 2. The ILDC hereby determines that the purchase price for $50,000 per acre is
$31,501.60 greater than the per acre appraised value of Site II-12, and accordingly, the sale of Site
II-12 to UDC is not a below fair market value disposition of real property as defined in PAL
Section 2897(7).

Section 3. The ILDC hereby determines and confirms that the proposed conveyance
of fee title to Site II-12 to UDC as herein described is within the purposes, mission and statutory
authority of the ILDC.

Section 4. The ILDC hereby approves of the sale of fee title to Site II-12 for a purchase
price of $50,000 per acre, resulting in a total purchase price (final purchase price dependent on
final survey) of $552,500.00.! and authorizes the Chair, the Vice Chair, the President/Chief
Executive Officer, the Vice President, the Chief Financial Officer/Treasurer and/or the Assistant
Treasurer (collectively, the “Authorized Officers”), on behalf of the ILDC, to negotiate, execute,
and deliver an appropriate PSA setting forth the terms and conditions relating thereto and any other
related documents required to accomplish the purposes of this resolution, with such changes,
variations, omissions and insertions as authorized by the Authorized Officers, in consultation with
the ILDC general counsel, to constitute conclusive evidence of such approval, including, but not
limited to the explanatory statement, as amended or supplemented, to be submitted to the ABO.

Section 5. The ILDC hereby authorizes the Authorized Officers, on behalf of the
ILDC, to take any required actions under the BCP to ensure UDC can obtain the benefits and
protections of the BCP.

Section 6. The Authorized Officers are hereby authorized and directed for and in the
name and on behalf of the ILDC to do all acts and things required and to negotiate, execute and
deliver all such certificates, instruments and documents, to pay all such fees, charges and expenses
and to do all such further acts and things as may be necessary or, in the opinion of the Authorized
Officer so acting, desirable and proper to effect the purposes of this resolution and to cause
compliance by the ILDC with all of the terms, covenants and provisions of the documents executed
for and on behalf of the ILDC.

Section 7. Any and all actions heretofore taken or authorized by the ILDC and/or its
officers, employees and agents with respect to this resolution are hereby ratified, approved and

confirmed in all aspects.

Section 8. These resolutions shall take effect immediately.

Dated: May 31, 2023

1 RCP Site l1-12 is approximately 12.02 acres in size. An approximately 0.97-acre portion of Site 1l-12 is encumbered
by restrictive easements (railroad lines) that prohibit its re-use. This 0.97 acres is being excepted out for pricing
consideration as it is unusable. As such, subject to the final survey, the purchase price is presently $552,500.00.

15



EXHIBIT A

e— e e et e s s s e seancean o s amiae
SURET MAT WARCED MY THE SENARA
ARG AN ORI OF THE ANG: %gg
SNDORS A S Bl CONSENCD , &G TAT TRACT OR ASEL OF (A0 ¥ I CRY OF CECKANNH, COUNTY OF R M0 STATT O

AW YO WG AT OF (0TS OF A CCOEN QONE TRACT,  BRMG AP NTE NMER
R o Wz mr vﬁﬂ&-ﬂﬁhﬁ!g;%%;&rlgagn)&aaﬁﬂgg
70 ANY SURVLY DRANNG, DESON, LEVELOIENT COMPGRATII, PRIPARSI 20 SENDRL, MAY 2017, PROECT WABER 411110, (MG BT OF
SPECICUTIN, FLAN G AEAORT 8 A RS FRGATT e #1107} BENG NORE. ARTCUARLY SR AND DESCRIED AF FOLLRKS:

] v ¥

i
B!
z#
iy
§§83
!
i
ik
:
gi
i

- AT MGE

M NEW YORK STATE DERARTMENY mwp &s‘ gﬁﬁ-ﬂ.ﬁ %%%ﬁﬁﬁf?!ﬁ!gg

5 EARONMENTAL  CONSERVATION e \§§$R%§L%:§ﬁ§é§§

71 Qvam%% " 9 \ IEE&R&S&“&”&:’!&E, zv&aﬁgg

EAVIRMMENTAL CONSERIATKN LAW. _ UENESS S AUST B PG, B}

ENVIRONMENTAL EASEMENT AREA AGLESS R aTony e o R i Ty ST e, 540 pouT .30
THE DEC OR THEIR AGENT MAY ACCESS DUNCE ALCAE: TE' MEXTENLY LINC OF SAG SUGHELY A PWSE & UL K W PP X067, A
THE ENVIROMMENTAL EASEMENT AREA AS ASDICE OF 44187 FEET 10 A FOBT
EHOWH HEREON THROUGH ANY EXISTING R 5 JU0'o e A BSTWGE O 800 FEET TO IHE WEHDNY 40U OF SHD BUSHESS AN
f mﬂgﬂmmgmc_s_;w THENCE ALOMG THE SDSTIONY LMD OF SO SUSINESS MUK Frulr & AeClt R -20 -8

e M o s e o e L 88 % S Ty S i e
CONTROLS FOR THIS EASEMENT ARE SET p\z&[.rr:n>§n-!2ﬁwe§§§%§§‘:ﬁ§§u
FORTH IN THE SITE MANAGEMENT PLAN {SMP). DMENCE SASERLY & FT— 11837 A GISOWEE OF 173 FEET 10 XE SOUPMEST CORER OF RIRESS
A COPY OF THE SMP MUST BE QORTAINED

BY ANY PARTY WITH AN INTEREST tN THE
PROPERTY. THE SMP CAN BE OBTAINED
FROM THE NY'S DEPARTMENT OF
ERVIRONMENTAL CONSERVATION, DIVISION
OF ENVIRONMENTAL REMEDIATION, SITE
CONTROL SECTION, 628 BROADWAY, ALBANY,
NY 12233 OR AT DERWEB@OW.DEC.STATE NY.US,

THENCE ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAG) PUSHEESS VIR PHASE & W 71T 8'-30°5 A DSTAVCE OF ZA.7)
FEEY T T NCRTHEE? COMR %E£§n~&r

THEMCE ALONG TE REST LNE OF H0° SOT AMUMBER CHIJ10MK, 5 2715~ 5 A DISBNCE OF 25590
\ T WAV ANKE PONT 8 S0 W

\ * §§§i-ﬂigaﬁgaﬂ~ihﬂ\£r&1nk§
ﬂﬁw \ OF SH2E FELT O THE MORDEAST CORNR OF S0P SITE AAAMBIR" CPAS 19L

e L

Ll

THERCE ALONWG THE NORTY LNE OF BCR ST NOMBER CRISINEY 5 200000 B A DIIANGE (F SR 54
—Eﬂi:giigiqggaagghﬂgstﬁ
—agggtgn«:ﬁﬁgxﬂgha

§§§g§g2§§aa§xﬁh;§h§ |
e W EE N
T KORTDY AT 3 L N I0=04'=8" W, A OGDWCE OF 11208 FEET I3 A FOOT:
‘el‘v\] = § 29=4R'~41" W, A QEZWCE OF 10000 FTET 100 A PO
Hh— ﬂ.. Qﬂﬂﬁinhgg..saaxgizs:kﬂnﬁai
o BCF SITE MMEER DHI3108), 3 71'~00'~0 ® A DBSTANCE OF SRS

axggggggiggi!ﬁ
T ALTmGEToN OF YIOw DSURINT, WXCHIT BT 4 |
LEOENSED LAND SURVENON, 78 JLENUAL

!§5§§?§§§
N BT AN PrE &

THE 1 YORN STUT ACTVATMENT OFF SHATONIINIX, CONNMION
SR M AT OF LOTS 10 & 2T OF RE GRX GOAE TINCY
o \ T o A o S AR
it Lot L T~ M-;.m,m@\ L AT OF -1t 11
4 \ YO e e Wy d =
MESTIAY MOORT” SOUMCARY OF NMNARG TLRNPYE. AT 7 v = J0 o
AP MDY R STATE OMASTIRENT OF ACRC WO L n 2 .
a e a1, a3 Aony i * B .ggﬁaqigégéaﬁﬁ;
b3 ritiegnagedulin lyncidy g Aol b AL
VIS ACOURED (Y 18 TORY. ST CAATANT OF
IRNSFATILDN FOR LY OF LACKARANA
NGRS TLRNPE SPL He. FAD 48=F0
AN X4, ARCE 306
£-100%0, A- 10N

SEE ENVRGIMENTAL EASEMENT SURVEY DRIED MAY 13 2014, TTEE Now 131325073
FOR DAE LOCATION OF SURKECT PROPERTY WITHIN TME CONTROLLED SITE.

i6



